
 

 

 

January 23rd, 2024 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 

(dba) Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources 

Open Session Board Meeting 



Agenda 



 

 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
DBA Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) 

100 Third Street 
Camdenton, MO 65020 

 

Tentative Agenda for Open Session Board Meeting on January 23rd, 2024, at 6:00 PM 
 

This Board Meeting will be held at: 
 

255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive 
 

Camdenton, MO 65020 
 

Participants can also Join via WebEx/Phone: 
 

https://camdencountydevelopmentaldisabilityresources.my.webex.com/camdencountydevelo

pmentaldisabilityresources.my/j.php?MTID=m398f2a05669eb9ec947b907607f47ae8 
 

To Join by Phone:  1-415-655-0001 
Meeting Number (Access Code):  2556 451 2507 

Meeting Password:  22679337 
 
             Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for December 12th, 2023 
 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

 

• November 2023 Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (OSL) Monthly Report 
• October I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) Monthly Report 
• November 2023 Children’s Learning Center (CLC) Monthly Report 
• November 2023 Lake Area Industries (LAI) Monthly Report 
• November 2023 Support Coordination Report 
• November 2023 Agency Economic Report 
• November Credit Card Statement 
• Resolutions 2024-1, 2024-2, 2024-3, 2024-4, 2024-5, 2024-6, 2024-7, 2024-8, & 2024-9 

 

Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements 

• NONE 
 
Monthly Reports 
 

• OSL 

• IWYP 

• CLC  

• LAI 

• Missouri Association of County Development Disabilities Services 
 

 



 

 

Old Business for Discussion 

• NONE 
 

New Business for Discussion 
 

• CARF Survey – Board Member Interviews 
 

CCDDR Reports 
 

• November 2023 Support Coordination Report 

• November 2023 Agency Economic Report 
 
November 2023 Credit Card Statements 
 
Discussion & Conclusion of Resolutions 
 

1. Resolution 2024-1:  Calendar Year 2024 Board Officer Election & Appointments 
2. Resolution 2024-2:  Calendar Year 2024 Human Resource Committee Nominations & Appointments 
3. Resolution 2024-3:  Calendar Year 2024 Budget Appropriations Committee Nominations & Appointments 
4. Resolution 2024-4:  Calendar Year 2024 Agency Governance Committee Nominations & Appointments 
5. Resolution 2024-5:  Temporary Committee Continuation - Joint CCDDR/LAI Committee 
6. Resolution 2024-6:  Temporary Committee Continuation - Joint CCDDR/CLC Committee 
7. Resolution 2024-7:  Change in Mileage Rate 
8. Resolution 2024-8:  Approval of Amended Policy 25 
9. Resolution 2024-9:  Approval of Amended Policy 34 

 
Open Discussions 
 
Public Comment 
 

Pursuant to ARTICLE IV, “Meetings”, Section 5. Public Comment: 
 
“The Board values input from the public. There shall be opportunity for comment by the public during the portion of the 
Board agenda designated for “Public Comment”. Public comment shall be limited to no more than 3 minutes per person 
to allow all who wish to participate to speak. It is the policy of the Board that the Board shall not respond to public 
comment at the Board meeting.” 
 
“Only comments related to agency-related matters will be received, however such comments need not be related to 
specific items of the Board’s agenda for the meeting. The Board shall not receive comments related to specific client 
matters and/or personnel grievances, which are addressed separately per Board policies and procedures.” 
 
Adjournment of Open Session 
 
 
 
 

The news media may obtain copies of this notice, and a direct link to the WebEx meeting can be submitted to anyone 
requesting access by contacting: 

Ed Thomas, CCDDR Executive Director 
100 Third Street (Physical Address), P.O. Box 722 (Mailing Address), Camdenton, MO  65065 

Office:  573-317-9233          Fax:  573-317-9332        Email:  director@ccddr.org 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 12th, 2023 
 

 Open Session Minutes 



CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 

 

Open Session Minutes of December 12th, 2023 

 

Members Present   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes, Dr. Vicki McNamara, 

       Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

Members Absent    Kym Jones 

 

Others Present        Ed Thomas, Executive Director 

 

Guests Present        Natalie Couch (LAI) 

                                 Adrienne Anderson (CLC) 

         Jeanna Booth, Lori Cornwell, Rachel Baskerville (CCDDR) 

                                  

 

Approval of Agenda 

 

Motion by Paul DiBello, second Dr. Vicki McNamara to approve the agenda as presented. 

  

                               AYE:  Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

         ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

                                          

Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for November 14th, 2023 

  

Motion by Ro Witt, second Nancy Hayes, to approve the Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for 

November 14th, 2023, as presented. 

  

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

                         

• October 2023 Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (OSL) Monthly 

Report 

• October 2023 Children’s Learning Center (CLC) Monthly Report 

• October 2023 Lake Area Industries (LAI) Monthly Report 

• 2023 YTD Performance Measures (January to September) 

• October 2023 Support Coordination Report 

• October 2023 Agency Economic Report 

• October 2023 Credit Card Statement 

• Resolution 2023-27, 2023-28, 2023-29, 2023-30, 2023-31 & 2023-32 

 

 



 

Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements 

 

None 

 

Monthly Oral Reports 

 

Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (OSL) 

Jessica Jensen (Ed Thomas presented Narrative Report) 

 

OSL is currently serving one client and everything is going well. 

 

 

I Wonder Y Preschool (IWYP) 

Wendy Aufdenkamp (Ed Thomas presented Narrative Report) 

 

IWYP does not have a monthly report this month because they hired a new accountant, and their reports 

are being processed. They are currently serving 2 CCDDR clients.  

 

 

Children’s Learning Center (CLC) 

Adrienne Anderson (Ed Thomas presented Narrative Report) 

 

The Step Ahead program has 37 children enrolled, with 25 of the 37 having special needs or 

developmental delays. Megan and Adrienne continue to attend trainings through MOSECA. Several 

grants have come through including one to repair the fence around the playground. 

 

 

Lake Area Industries (LAI)  

Natalie Couch  

 

LAI has 5 new employees and 4 out of the 5 on medical leave have returned. The employee Christmas 

party is coming up and there will be a DJ, Santa, and elves. LAI received $10,300 from the Shootout and 

$5,155 from the Rotary talent show. The Tootsie Roll challenge also raised $1,200. LAI is currently 

researching possibilities in the e-waste recycling market and have started accepting donations of 

Christmas lights. House Bill 1436 is an effort of MASWM to ensure workshops are not left out of SB 40 

funding. 

 

 

Missouri Association of County Developmental Disabilities Services (MACDDS) 

 

The State has severed its relationship with FEI, the entity contracted to create ConneXion; therefore, we 

do not when or if ConneXion will eventually go live. This affects CCDDR’s budget, so it will need to be 

amended. A HRST discussion was held today that Ed was unable to attend. There are still many concerns 

about the HRST. The MAAS and new bridge plan will probably have more updates over the next few 

months. 

 

 

Old Business for Discussion 

 

None 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

New Business for Discussion 

 

Preliminary 2024 Outlook 

 

Bills have been introduced that will be closely followed. CCDDR’s CARF survey will take place January 

25th and 26th and will be a hybrid format. The ConneXion rollout has been cancelled and TCM rate and 

allocation rate discussions will continue next year.  

 

Ed is looking for Board members for the new nonprofit. There will hopefully be a meeting held by the 

end of the first quarter of 2024 before the State and Federal filings are submitted.  

 

The Mobility Coordination Initiative will kick off January 1st. Town Hall meetings are being held the 

week of December 11th through 15th. There are 3 trained Mobility Coordinators within CCDDR. New 

Growth Transit also held a Town Hall meeting today about the volunteer driver program, and another one 

is scheduled tomorrow. The preventive health care grant through UMKC is in its 3rd year. 

 

The Keystone renovation project is in the last stage before the RFP is issued. The septic and leech fields 

are being evaluated. 

 

An IT management RFP will need to be issued early next year. The plan is to purchase laptops outright 

instead of trying to lease them through an IT management entity. The service will probably be much more 

costly than it was when the last RFP was issued. 

 

CCDDR will be getting more involved in housing initiatives and a feasibility study as part of the NCMM 

Community Mobility Design Challenge grant. 

 

The Board education process will continue on a small group or one-on-one basis. During the first quarter 

of 2024, Ed will set up dates to meet with individual Board members. 

 

 

CCDDR Reports 

 

2023 YTD Performance Measures (January to September) 

 

These are the goals set for CARF that are then reported back to CARF. Considering the high turnover on 

the support coordination team, the numbers look better than anticipated. Angela Sellers asked what was 

being done about the measures for submitting plans 21 days before the due date and the billable time 

goals. Those are measures that improve as new SCs continue training and gaining experience.  

 

 

October 2023 Support Coordination Report 

 

 

There were 343 clients as of yesterday and 347 at the end of last week. Medicaid eligibility is at 87.5% 

and caseload distribution is evening out.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

October 2023 Agency Economic Report 

 

There will likely be some carryover funds at the end of the year. Some will probably be added to the 

Keystone renovations to cover anything unexpected. Some may also go towards the purchase of new IT 

equipment. It will be good to have unanticipated carryover funds just in case there is more employee 

turnover in 2024. 

 

Motion by Angela St. Joan, second Dr. Vicki McNamara, to approve all reports as presented. 

  

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

October 2022 Credit Card Statement 

 

No Questions and a vote not necessary. 

 

 

Discussion and Conclusions of Resolutions 

 

1. Resolution 2023-27: LAI POS Agreement January 1st to December 31st, 2024 

 

LAI submitted their annual application for POS contract renewal. The request looked good.           

 

Motion by Elizabeth Perkins, second Ro Witt, to approve Resolution 2023-27. 

 

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

 

2. Resolution 2023-28: 2024 LAI Capital Funding Agreement 

 

This resolution is to allocate the funding leftover from the last Capital Funding Agreement. 

 

Motion by Brian Willey, second Paul DiBello, to approve Resolution 2023-28. 

 

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 



Motion carries. 

 

 

3. Resolution 2023-29: CLC POS Agreement January 1st to December 31st, 2024 

 

CLC submitted their annual application for POS contract renewal. The request looked good. 

 

Motion by Nancy Hayes, second Ro Witt, to approve Resolution 2023-29. 

 

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

 

4. Resolution 2023-30: IWYP POS Agreement January 1st to December 31st, 2024 

 

IWYP submitted their annual application for POS contract renewal. The request looked good. 

 

Motion by Ro Witt, second Paul DiBello, to approve Resolution 2023-30. 

 

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

 

5. Resolution 2023-31: OSLCFDC POS Agreement January 1st to December 31st, 2024 

 

OSLCFDC submitted their annual application for POS contract renewal. The request looked good. 

 

Motion by Nancy Hayes, second Ro Witt, to approve Resolution 2023-31. 

 

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

6. Resolution 2023-32: Approval of New Policy #47 

 

This policy is about exempt employees. It addresses FLSA requirements and maintains compliance. 

 

Motion by Nancy Hayes, second Ro Witt, to approve Resolution 2023-32. 

 

                             AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

Open Discussion 

 

The Commissioners reappointed Nancy Hayes and Kym Jones. They also appointed Laura Martin to the 

position currently occupied by Dr. Vicki McNamara. Dr. Vicki McNamara preferred not to renew her 

term but has been a huge asset to the Board.  The Board recognized and thanked Dr. McNamara’s 

commitment to the Board and its clients. 

 

At last year’s HR Committee meeting, the Committee decided to go back to a “work session” format for 

the annual Executive Director review. This could happen after the January Board meeting during Closed 

Session so members can discuss the meaning and intent behind the evaluation questions. 

 

Motion by Angela St. Joan, second by Paul DiBello, for the HR Committee to defer the Executive 

Director evaluation to a Closed Session at the January 2024 Board meeting so that all Board members can 

ask questions and have discussions as needed. 

 

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

Public Comment 

 

None 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Adjournment of Open Session 

 

Motion by Brian Willey, second Paul DiBello, to adjourn the Open Session Board meeting. 

 

                              AYE:   Angela Sellers, Elizabeth Perkins, Paul DiBello, Nancy Hayes,  

                                          Dr. Vicki McNamara, Angela St. Joan, Ro Witt, Brian Willey 

 

                                 NO:  None 

 

                     ABSTAIN:  None 

 

Motion carries. 

 

The Open Session Board meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                  

___________________________________                              ___________________________________ 

Board Chairperson/Other Board Member                                  Secretary/Other Board Member 



OSL November Reports 
 



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Profit and Loss
November 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, December 1, 2023 09:52 AM GMT-06:00   1/1

TOTAL

Income

Tuition 1,541.75

Total Income $1,541.75

GROSS PROFIT $1,541.75

Expenses

Payroll Expenses

Taxes 826.27

Wages 10,561.54

Total Payroll Expenses 11,387.81

Total Expenses $11,387.81

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -9,846.06

NET INCOME $ -9,846.06



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Profit and Loss

January - November, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, December 1, 2023 09:52 AM GMT-06:00   1/1

TOTAL

Income

Registration Fees 50.00

Services 1,404.91

Subsidy Payment 0.00

Tuition 32,562.34

Total Income $34,017.25

GROSS PROFIT $34,017.25

Expenses

Payroll Expenses

Taxes 10,489.94

Wages 127,422.87

Total Payroll Expenses 137,912.81

Total Expenses $137,912.81

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -103,895.56

NET INCOME $ -103,895.56



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Balance Sheet Summary

As of November 30, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, December 1, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-06:00   1/1

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts -167,596.34

Accounts Receivable 326.03

Other Current Assets 111,807.87

Total Current Assets $ -55,462.44

Fixed Assets 321.96

TOTAL ASSETS $ -55,140.48

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 0.00

Other Current Liabilities 66,205.52

Total Current Liabilities $66,205.52

Total Liabilities $66,205.52

Equity -121,346.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ -55,140.48



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Statement of Cash Flows

November 2023

  Friday, December 1, 2023 09:55 AM GMT-06:00   1/1

TOTAL

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income -9,846.06

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:

Accounts Receivable (A/R) -380.75

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

Payroll Liabilities:Daycare Half Days Employee Discount 180.00

Payroll Liabilities:Federal Taxes (941/944) 1,952.08

Payroll Liabilities:MO Income Tax 184.00

Payroll Liabilities:MO Unemployment Tax 18.32

Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 1,953.65

Net cash provided by operating activities $ -7,892.41

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $ -7,892.41

Cash at beginning of period -49,406.12

CASH AT END OF PERIOD $ -57,298.53



Our Savior Lutheran Church DBA LighthouseCFDC (2)
Statement of Cash Flows

January - November, 2023

  Friday, December 1, 2023 09:53 AM GMT-06:00   1/1

TOTAL

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income -103,895.56

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:

Accounts Receivable (A/R) 817.75

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

Payroll Liabilities:Daycare Half Days Employee Discount 1,665.00

Payroll Liabilities:Federal Taxes (941/944) 23,467.77

Payroll Liabilities:MO Income Tax 1,575.00

Payroll Liabilities:MO Unemployment Tax 742.08

Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 28,267.60

Net cash provided by operating activities $ -75,627.96

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $ -75,627.96

Cash at beginning of period 18,329.43

CASH AT END OF PERIOD $ -57,298.53



IWYP October Reports 
 



Narrative:

I Wonder Y Preschool and WAVE Childcare are not for profit, 501(c)3

Missouri Methodist supported children’s programs dedicated to providing

exceptional care to children 3 to 12 years of age. Highly qualified staff

provide gentle and loving support to children with the primary goal of aiding

each child to reach their fullest potential. Independently created curriculum

incorporates a skill set geared toward individual goals and is focused on

reaching physical, mental, and spiritual growth in a safe environment. I

Wonder Y Preschool and WAVE Childcare are housed by Camdenton

United Methodist Church and gladly accepts subsidized payments to help

support family needs. All child care programs strive to create an

environment that is inclusive to the needs of each child while fostering a

love of learning and friendships. Inquiries into the various outreach

programs supported by Camdenton United Methodist can be made by

calling 573-346-5350 or visiting our website at CamUMC.org.



CamUMC I Wonder Y Preschool
Cash Flow Statement: October 2023

Inflow: YTD Jan-Oct 2023

Tuitions: $ 7922.50 $ 106310.57
Donations: $ 200.00 $ 2900.00
DSS: $ 989.58 $ 15032.29
CCDDR: $ 2393.23 $ 15080.63
CACFP: $ 0.00 $ 6802.63

Total Income: $ 11505.31 $ 146126.12

Outflow:
Staff Expenses: $ 9221.00 $ 72732.51
Food: $ 1001.12 $ 15134.68
Supplies: $ 175.00 $ 6283.72
Misc Expenses: (printer, shared utilities) $ 350.00 $ 3150.00
Training $ 0.0 $ 41.75

Total Expenses: $ 10747.12 $ 97693.21

Total cash in = $ 11505.31 $ 146126.51
Total cash out = $ 10747.12 $ 97693.21
Total profit = $ 758.19 $ 48432.91
Net liquidy = $ 14852.00 $ 14852.00
Net Assets = $ 275439.00 $ 275439.00
Net liabilities = $ 7996.06 $ 7996.06
Net equity= $ 6855.94 $ 6855.94
Shareholders equity = $ 275439.00 $ 275439.00



CLC November Reports 
 



























LAI November Reports 
 















Support Coordination 
Report 



J 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SUPPORT COORDINATION REPORT  
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

November 2023 
 

Client Caseloads 
 

• Number of Caseloads as of November 30th, 2023:  347 

• Budgeted Number of Caseloads:  310 

• Pending Number of New Intakes:  5 

• Medicaid Eligibility:  88.18% 
 

Caseload Counts 

Emily Breckenridge – 35 
Daniel Burrows – 40 

Elizabeth Chambers – 39 
Robyne Gerstner – 34 
Angela Graves – 33 
Ryan Johnson – 53 
Jennifer Lyon – 5 

Christina Mitchell – 31 
Mary Petersen – 5 

Patricia Strouse – 39 
Mery Viebrock – 33 



Agency Economic 
Report 

(Unaudited) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENCY ECONOMIC REPORT  
 
 

Page - 1 - of 11 

 

 

November 2023 

 

 
Medicaid Targeted Case Management Income 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

0.00

20,000.00

40,000.00

60,000.00

80,000.00

100,000.00

120,000.00

140,000.00

160,000.00

Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23

Total Payable Billed 113,382.72 90,875.52 85,164.48 85,259.52 126,109.44 78,408.00 91,644.48 100,586.88 96,569.28 92,689.92 87,834.24 136,987.20 95,929.92

Total Payment Received 111,732.48 90,434.88 84,775.68 84,602.88 125,064.00 78,200.64 91,540.80 98,228.16 94,098.24 89,596.80 86,736.96 133,583.04 93,355.20

TCM Billed vs TCM Payment Received



Page - 2 - of 11 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

98.33%

98.34%

1.67%

1.66%

0.00% 20.00% 40.00% 60.00% 80.00% 100.00% 120.00%

2023 Paid

2022 Paid

2023 Not Paid

2022 Not Paid

2023 vs 2022 
Percentage Comparison Medicaid Billed vs Medicaid 

Paid 



Page - 3 - of 11 

 

 

 

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2023 - FY23 P&L Departments 

November 2023 

 SB 40 Tax Services 

 Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income           

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 3,905  3,883  22     0  

   4500 Services Income    0  114,090  100,753  13,337  

Total Income 3,905  3,883  22  114,090  100,753  13,337  

Gross Profit 3,905  3,883  22  114,090  100,753  13,337  

Expenses           

   5000 Payroll & Benefits    0  96,422  85,326  11,096  

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance    0  997  40  957  

   5500 Contracted Business Services    0  2,500  8,900  (6,400) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings    0  56  270  (214) 

   5700 Office Expenses    0  1,723  3,575  (1,852) 

   5800 Other General & Administrative    0  418  1,325  (907) 

   5900 Utilities    0  (278) 825  (1,103) 

   6100 Insurance    0  2,085  2,100  (16) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 3,378  5,900  (2,522)    0  

   6900 CCDDR Services 19,166  20,156  (990)    0  

   7100 Housing Programs   1,390  (1,390)    0  

   7200 Children's Programs 22,355  29,550  (7,195)    0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 17,773  28,200  (10,427)    0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs   1,200  (1,200)    0  

   7600 Community Resources    0    0  0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 158  3,109  (2,951)    0  

Total Expenses 62,831  89,505  (26,674) 103,924  102,361  1,563  

Net Operating Income (58,926) (85,622) 26,696  10,167  (1,608) 11,775  

Other Expenses           

   8500 Depreciation    0  4,023  4,850  (827) 

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  4,023  4,850  (827) 

Net Other Income 0  0  0  (4,023) (4,850) 827  

Net Income (58,926) (85,622) 26,696  6,144  (6,458) 12,602  

 

 

 

 

 

Budget Variance Report 
Total Income: In November, SB 40 Tax Program income was slightly higher than projected, and Services Program income 
was higher than projected.     
 
Total Expenses: In November, SB 40 Tax Program expenses were lower than budgeted expectations in all categories. 
Overall Services Program expenses were slightly higher than budgeted expectations.  There is an overage in Payroll & 
Benefits; however, the full amount of offsets from restricted funds budgeted were not utilized because Net Operating Income 
was higher than anticipated.  Repairs & Maintenance expenses were higher than budgeted expectations because there was 
an HVAC condensation overflow due to a clogged drain line and the locking mechanism to the front door of the Camdenton 
office needed repairs.   
 
 
 



Page - 4 - of 11 

 

  

 

 

 

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2023 - FY23 P&L Departments 

January - November, 2023 

 SB 40 Tax Services 

 Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income           

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 1,080,112  1,038,108  42,004     0  

   4500 Services Income    0  1,299,871  1,271,213  28,658  

Total Income 1,080,112  1,038,108  42,004  1,299,871  1,271,213  28,658  

Gross Profit 1,080,112  1,038,108  42,004  1,299,871  1,271,213  28,658  

Expenses           

   5000 Payroll & Benefits    0  1,057,543  1,037,519  20,024  

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance    0  5,206  6,240  (1,034) 

   5500 Contracted Business Services    0  89,607  99,540  (9,933) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings    0  2,625  3,270  (645) 

   5700 Office Expenses    0  35,114  41,537  (6,423) 

   5800 Other General & Administrative 0   0  40,617  45,025  (4,408) 

   5900 Utilities    0  5,895  9,075  (3,180) 

   6100 Insurance    0  22,803  23,100  (298) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 30,669  64,900  (34,231)    0  

   6900 CCDDR Services 218,251  221,716  (3,465)    0  

   7100 Housing Programs 9,776  17,803  (8,027)    0  

   7200 Children's Programs 270,989  325,050  (54,061)    0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 182,654  274,200  (91,546)    0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs   13,200  (13,200)    0  

   7600 Community Resources    0    0  0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 3,583  33,684  (30,101)    0  

Total Expenses 715,922  950,553  (234,631) 1,259,408  1,265,306  (5,898) 

Net Operating Income 364,190  87,555  276,635  40,462  5,907  34,555  

Other Expenses           

   8500 Depreciation    0  44,208  53,350  (9,142) 

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  44,208  53,350  (9,142) 

Net Other Income 0  0  0  (44,208) (53,350) 9,142  

Net Income 364,190 87,555 276,635 (3,745.57) (47,443.00) 43,697 

 

 

Budget Variance Report 
Total Income: As of November, YTD SB 40 Tax Program income was slightly higher than projected, and YTD Services 
Program income was slightly higher than projected.   
 
Total Expenses: As of November, YTD SB 40 Tax Program expenses were lower than budgeted in all categories, and overall 
YTD Services Program expenses were lower than budgeted.  There is a slight overage in Payroll & Benefits; however, the full 
amount of offsets from restricted funds budgeted have not been utilized because Net Operating Income has been higher than 
anticipated. 
 
 
 
 
  

 



Page - 5 - of 11 

 

Balance Sheet 

As of November 30, 2023 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

ASSETS     

   Current Assets     

      Bank Accounts     

         1000 Bank Accounts     

            1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts     

               1010 SB 40 Tax Account (County Tax Funds) - First Nat'l Bank 0  0  

               1015 SB 40 Tax Reserve Account (County Tax Funds) - Central Bank 0    

               1020 SB 40 Tax Certificate of Deposit 0    

               1025 SB 40 Tax - Bank of Sullivan 0  0  

               1030 SB 40 Tax Reserve - Bank of Sullivan 0    

               1035 Heritage SB 40 Tax Account 1,153,339    

            Total 1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts 1,153,339  0  

            1050 Services Bank Accounts     

               1055 Services Account - Oak Star Bank (Formerly 1st Nat'l Bank) 0  0  

               1060 Services Certificate of Deposit   0  

               1075 Services Account - Bank of Sullivan 0  0  

               1080 Heritage Services Account   210,369  

            Total 1050 Services Bank Accounts 0  210,369  

         Total 1000 Bank Accounts 1,153,339  210,369  

      Total Bank Accounts 1,153,339  210,369  

      Accounts Receivable     

         1200 Services     

            1210 Medicaid Direct Service   46,725  

            1215 Non-Medicaid Direct Service   23,684  

            1220 Ancillary Services   16,628  

         Total 1200 Services 0  87,037  

         1300 Property Taxes     

            1310 Property Tax Receivable 1,086,958    

            1315 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (23,707)   

         Total 1300 Property Taxes 1,063,251  0  

      Total Accounts Receivable 1,063,251  87,037  

      Other Current Assets     

         1389 BANK ERROR Claim Confirmations (A/R) 0  0  

         1399 TCM Remittance Advices (In-Transit Payments) 0  0  

         1400 Other Current Assets     

            1410 Other Deposits 0    

            1430 Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions   110,904  

            1435 Net Pension Asset (Liability)   24,997  

         Total 1400 Other Current Assets 0  135,901  

         1450 Prepaid Expenses   0  

            1455 Prepaid-Insurance 0  8,546  

         Total 1450 Prepaid Expenses 0  8,546  

      Total Other Current Assets 0  144,447  

   Total Current Assets 2,216,590  441,853  

   Fixed Assets     

      1500 Fixed Assets     



Page - 6 - of 11 

 

         1510 100 Third Street Land   47,400  

         1511 Keystone Land   14,650  

         1520 100 Third Street Building   431,091  

         1521 Keystone   163,498  

         1525 Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   (199,238) 

         1526 Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   (40,996) 

         1530 100 Third Street Remodeling   164,157  

         1531 Keystone Remodeling   162,671  

         1532 Osage Beach Office Remodeling (Leased Space)   4,225  

         1535 Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   (93,656) 

         1536 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   (27,707) 

         1537 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   (4,219) 

         1540 Equipment   138,114  

         1545 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   (115,835) 

         1550 Vehicles   0  

         1555 Accumulated Depreciation - Vehicles   0  

      Total 1500 Fixed Assets 0  644,154  

   Total Fixed Assets 0  644,154  

TOTAL ASSETS 2,216,590  1,086,006  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     

   Liabilities     

      Current Liabilities     

         Accounts Payable     

            1900 Accounts Payable 40,311  7,610  

         Total Accounts Payable 40,311  7,610  

         Other Current Liabilities     

            2000 Current Liabilities     

               2004 Medicaid Payable   0  

               2005 Accrued Accounts Payable 0  0  

               2006 DMH Payable 0    

               2007 Non-Medicaid Payable 11,842    

               2008 Ancillary Services Payable 8,314    

               2010 Accrued Payroll Expense 0  0  

               2015 Accrued Compensated Absences 0  (2,157) 

               2025 Prepaid Services 0    

               2030 Deposits 0  0  

               2050 Prepaid Tax Revenue 0    

               2055 Deferred Inflows - Property Taxes 995,733    

               2060 Payroll Tax Payable   0  

                  2061 Federal W / H Tax Payable 0  (160) 

                  2062 Social Security Tax Payable 0  180  

                  2063 Medicare Tax Payable 0  (32) 

                  2064 MO State W / H Tax Payable 0  (113) 

                  2065 FFCRA Federal W/H Tax Credit   (3) 

                  2066 FFCRA Health Insurance Credit   0  

               Total 2060 Payroll Tax Payable 0  (128) 

               2070 Payroll Clearing     

                  2071 Pre-tax W / H 0  436  

                  2072 Post-tax W / H 0  193  

                  2073 Vision Insurance W / H 0  422  



Page - 7 - of 11 

 

                  2074 Health Insurance W / H 0  106  

                  2075 Dental Insurance W / H 0  329  

                  2076 Savings W / H   0  

                  2078 Misc W / H   0  

                  2079 Other W / H   0  

               Total 2070 Payroll Clearing 0  1,486  

               2090 Deferred Inflows   82,480  

               2091 Computer Lease Liability   43,622  

               2092 Current Portion of Lease Payable   15,878  

               2093 Less Current Portion of Lease Payable   (15,878) 

            Total 2000 Current Liabilities 1,015,889  125,302  

         Total Other Current Liabilities 1,015,889  125,302  

      Total Current Liabilities 1,056,199  132,913  

   Total Liabilities 1,056,199  132,913  

   Equity     

      3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances     

         3001 Operational 0    

         3005 Operational Reserves 200,000    

         3010 Transportation 0    

         3015 New Programs 0    

         3025 Housing 0    

         3030 Special Needs 0    

         3035 Childrens Programs 0    

         3040 Sheltered Workshop 2,874    

         3045 Traditional Medicaid Match 0    

         3050 Partnership for Hope Match 0    

         3055 Building/Remodeling/Expansion 524,809    

         3065 Legal 0    

         3070 TCM 0    

         3075 Community Resource 0    

      Total 3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances 727,683  0  

      3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances     

         3501 Operational   122,897  

         3505 Operational Reserves   100,000  

         3510 Transportation   0  

         3515 New Programs   0  

         3530 Special Needs   0  

         3550 Partnership for Hope Match   0  

         3555 Building/Remodeling/Expansion   0  

         3560 Sponsorships   0  

         3565 Legal   0  

         3575 Community Resources   5,000  

         3599 Other   644,154  

      Total 3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances 0  872,051  

      3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (28,359) 6,498  

      3950 Prior Period Adjustment 0  0  

      3999 Clearing Account 111,175  63,992  

      Net Income 364,190  (3,746) 

   Total Equity 1,174,689  938,796  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,230,888  1,071,709  



Page - 8 - of 11 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 

November 2023 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

   Net Income (58,926) 6,144  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     

      1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   40,452  

      1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   (11,842) 

      1220 Services:Ancillary Services   (8,314) 

      1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   3,189  

      1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   898  

      1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   366  

      1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   723  

      1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   481  

      1537 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   0  

      1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   1,555  

      1900 Accounts Payable 40,311  137  

      2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable 0    

      2008 Current Liabilities:Ancillary Services Payable 0    

      2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   0  

      2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   0  

      2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   0  

      2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   0  

      2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Pre-tax W / H   (22) 

      2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Post-tax W / H   25  

      2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insurance W / H   (10) 

      2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   79  

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 40,311  27,717  

Net cash provided by operating activities (18,615) 33,861  

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3501 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Operational   (3,551) 

   3599 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Other   (4,023) 

   3999 Clearing Account   4,023  

Net cash provided by financing activities 0  (3,551) 

Net cash increase for period (18,615) 30,310  

Cash at beginning of period 1,171,955  180,058  

Cash at end of period 1,153,339  210,369  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 9 - of 11 

 

 

Statement of Cash Flows 

January - November, 2023 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
   Net Income 364,190  (3,746) 
   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     
      1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   4,139  

      1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   (1,310) 

      1220 Services:Ancillary Services   (2,776) 

      1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   21,283  

      1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   9,879  

      1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   4,026  

      1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   7,952  

      1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   5,249  

      1537 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   0  

      1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   17,101  

      1555 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Vehicles   (6,740) 

      1900 Accounts Payable 12,388  3,628  

      2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable 655    

      2008 Current Liabilities:Ancillary Services Payable 1,388    

      2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   (160) 

      2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   (137) 

      2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   (32) 

      2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   (76) 

      2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Pre-tax W / H   159  

      2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Post-tax W / H   147  

      2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insurance W / H   239  

      2074 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Health Insurance W / H   76  

      2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   549  

      2078 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Misc W / H   224  

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: 14,431  63,421  

Net cash provided by operating activities 378,621  59,676  
INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
   1531 Fixed Assets:Keystone Remodeling   (32,200) 
   1550 Fixed Assets:Vehicles   6,740  

Net cash provided by investing activities 0  (25,460) 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3010 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Transportation (155,000)   

   3025 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Housing 0    

   3030 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Special Needs 0    

   3040 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Sheltered Workshop (114,126)   

   3055 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Building/Remodeling/Expansion 265,606    

   3070 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:TCM 0    

   3501 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Operational   76,554  

   3505 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Operational Reserves   (43,945) 

   3555 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Building/Remodeling/Expansion   (126,055) 

   3575 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Community Resources   5,000  

   3599 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Other   (12,008) 
   3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (174,943) (75,664) 
   3999 Clearing Account   41,708  

Net cash provided by financing activities (178,463) (134,410) 

Net cash increase for period 200,158  (100,194) 

Cash at beginning of period 953,181  310,563  

Cash at end of period 1,153,339  210,369  



Page - 10 - of 11 

 

 
 

Check Detail SB 40 Tax Account 
November 2023 

      1035 Heritage SB 40 Tax Account 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1179 Lake Area Industries (17,772.56) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1181 I Wonder Y Preschool (2,359.32) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1180 DMH Local Tax Matching Fund (3,378.32) 

 

Check Detail Services Account 
November 2023 

      1080 Heritage Services Account 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1897 Charter Business / Spectrum (599.87) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1907 Staples Advantage (87.31) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1896 Camden County PWSD #2 (46.61) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1908 Wilson Toellner CPA (1,860.00) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1905 MSW Interactive Designs LLC (35.00) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1894 All Seasons Services (650.00) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1895 Angela D Graves (265.38) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1898 Connie L Baker (78.13) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1900 Elizabeth L Chambers (228.81) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1901 Emily J Breckenridge (148.75) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1902 LaClede Electric Cooperative (424.22) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1903 Lori Cornwell (53.75) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1904 Meri Viebrock (155.00) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1906 Patricia L. Strouse (162.94) 

11/06/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1899 Direct Service Works (1,195.00) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Connie L Baker (1,430.34) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Rachel K Baskerville (1,554.54) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Myrna Blaine (907.50) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Jeanna K Booth (1,840.74) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Emily J Breckenridge (1,451.48) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Elizabeth L Chambers (1,296.61) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Lori Cornwell (1,905.86) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Robyne Gerstner (1,328.91) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Angela D Graves (1,321.59) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Ryan Johnson (1,865.25) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Jennifer Lyon (1,803.28) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Christina R. Mitchell (739.67) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Mary P Petersen (1,693.18) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Patricia L. Strouse (1,153.53) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Eddie L Thomas (3,008.82) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Meri Viebrock (1,328.28) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Rebecca West (974.41) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Nicole M Whittle (1,845.09) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 ADP TAX (9,363.95) 

11/10/2023 Expense 11/10/2023 Daniel Burrows (1,445.27) 



Page - 11 - of 11 

 

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1909 Daniel Burrows (108.56) 

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1911 Eddie L Thomas 0.00  

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1910 Ryan Johnson (198.16) 

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1917 AT&T (117.50) 

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1912 VERIZON (225.36) 

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1915 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (120.00) 

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1916 Eddie L Thomas (50.00) 

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1914 Lake Regional Occupational Medicine Clinic (96.00) 

11/13/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1913 SUMNERONE (2,468.90) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1922 City Of Camdenton (45.64) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1923 Conaway Contracting (125.00) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1919 Bankcard Center (1,196.19) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1926 SUMNERONE (78.00) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1925 Office Business Equipment (52.57) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1918 A-Z Home Services LLC (742.42) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1921 Bryan Cave Leighton Paisner LLP (275.00) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1924 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (60.00) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1920 Big Oak Storage LLC (148.00) 

11/16/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1927 Conaway Contracting (350.00) 

11/21/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1928 Jennifer Lyon (69.00) 

11/21/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1930 Robyne Gerstner (159.50) 

11/21/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1929 Myrna Blaine (50.00) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Connie L Baker (1,680.31) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Rachel K Baskerville (1,554.55) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Myrna Blaine (775.74) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Jeanna K Booth (1,840.74) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Emily J Breckenridge (1,451.47) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Daniel Burrows (1,461.69) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Elizabeth L Chambers (1,279.36) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Lori Cornwell (1,905.87) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Robyne Gerstner (1,519.60) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Angela D Graves (1,332.54) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Ryan Johnson (1,865.27) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Jennifer Lyon (1,803.28) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Christina R. Mitchell (1,412.03) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Mary P Petersen (1,693.19) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Wade Seals (713.30) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Patricia L. Strouse (1,153.51) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Eddie L Thomas (3,008.82) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Meri Viebrock (1,327.05) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 Nicole M Whittle (1,845.08) 

11/24/2023 Expense 11/24/2023 ADP TAX (9,743.91) 

11/26/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1931 AT&T (177.28) 

11/26/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1933 MO Consolidated Health Care (12,751.81) 

11/26/2023 Bill Payment (Check) 1932 Delta Dental of Missouri (464.68) 

11/30/2023 Expense 
November 

2023 Lagers (5,260.46) 

11/30/2023 Check SVCCHRG   (2.40) 

 
 



November 2023 
Credit Card Statement 

 









































EdThomas
Typewriter
(For CCDDR Client)



EdThomas
Typewriter
(For CCDDR Client)



EdThomas
Typewriter
(For CCDDR Client)



EdThomas
Typewriter
(For CCDDR Client)























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Resolutions 2024-1, 

2024-2, 2024-3, 2024-4, 
2024-5, 2024-6, 2024-7, 

2024-8, & 2024-9 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-1  
 
 

 

CALENDAR YEAR 2024 BOARD OFFICER ELECTION & APPOINTMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board Bylaws require the annual appointment of officers 

under Article III, Sections 1 and 2. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby elects and appoints the following Board members 

to officer positions for the Calendar Year 2024: 

  

 Chairperson: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Vice Chairperson: _________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Treasurer: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Secretary: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 

 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2  
 
 

 

Calendar Year 2024 Human Resource Committee Nominations and Appointments 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

Bylaws allow for committees to be created to research and discuss specific topics for business and make 

recommendations to Board members as a whole. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to continue utilizing a 

Human Resource Committee for evaluating the Executive Director’s ongoing performance; assisting in 

human resource projects and issues; and monitoring the overall workforce objectives, cultures, and 

compliance. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby nominates and appoints: 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Chairperson 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Secretary 

 

 

 _________________________________________________ 

 

as members to the 2024 Human Resources Committee, to which the Chairperson of the Board shall serve 

as its Ex-Officio member. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 

 

 

 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-3  
 
 

 

Calendar Year 2024 Budget Appropriations Committee Nominations & Appointments 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

Bylaws allow for committees to be created to research and discuss specific topics for business and make 

recommendations to Board members as a whole. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to continue utilizing a 

Budget Appropriations Committee for evaluating annual budgets, restricted accounts allocations, budget 

overages/shortfalls, major purchase allocations, and other fiscal matters not part of the day-to-day business 

operations. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby nominates and appoints: 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Chairperson 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Secretary 

 

 

 _________________________________________________ 

 

as members to the 2024 Budget Appropriations Committee, to which the Chairperson of the Board shall 

serve as its Ex-Officio member. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 

 

 

 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-4  
 
 

 

Calendar Year 2024 Agency Governance Committee Nominations & Appointments 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

Bylaws allow for committees to be created to research and discuss specific topics for business and make 

recommendations to Board members as a whole. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to continue utilizing an 

Agency Governance Committee for evaluating changes to its Bylaws. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby nominates and appoints: 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Chairperson 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Secretary 

 

 

 _________________________________________________ 

 

as members to the 2024 Agency Governance Committee, to which the Chairperson of the Board shall serve 

as its Ex-Officio member. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 

 

 

 

 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-5  
 
 

 

Temporary Committee Continuation – Joint CCDDR/LAI Committee 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate Bill 40 

enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative control, and 

management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) Bylaws allow 

for committees to be created to research and discuss specific topics for business and make recommendations to Board 

members as a whole. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources), 

hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to continue to utilize a Joint CCDDR/LAI 

Committee. 

 

2.  The Board shall assign this committee to conduct research, provide evaluations, and make recommendations to the 

Board as a whole for consideration. 

 

3.  That the Board hereby nominates and appoints: 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Chairperson 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Secretary 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

as members to the 2024 Joint CCDDR/LAI Committee, to which the Chairperson of the Board shall serve as its Ex-

Officio member and to which representatives from the LAI Board of Directors shall also serve as members. 

 

4.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a majority Board 

vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-6  
 
 

 

Temporary Committee Continuation – Joint CCDDR/CLC Committee 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate Bill 40 

enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative control, and 

management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) Bylaws allow 

for committees to be created to research and discuss specific topics for business and make recommendations to Board 

members as a whole. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources), 

hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to continue to utilize a Joint CCDDR/CLC 

Committee. 

 

2.  The Board shall assign this committee to conduct research, provide evaluations, and make recommendations to the 

Board as a whole for consideration. 

 

3.  That the Board hereby nominates and appoints: 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Chairperson 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ - Committee Secretary 

 

 

 ________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

as members to the 2024 Joint CCDDR/CLC Committee, to which the Chairperson of the Board shall serve as its Ex-

Officio member and to which representatives from the CLC Board of Directors shall also serve as members. 

 

4.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a majority Board 

vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-7  
 
 

Helping to Meet the Challenges of Developmental Disabilities 

 

CHANGE IN MILEAGE RATE  

 

WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. 

voters of the Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, 

property, affairs, administrative control, and management to rest solely with the 

Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, 1 CSR 10-11.010 sets forth the maximum rate of mileage reimbursement for 

county officials and employees not to exceed the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) standard 

mileage rate less 3 cents per mile. Any change to the maximum rate is effective on July 

1st of the year the IRS changes their standard mileage rate.  

 

WHEREAS, IRS Notice 2024-08 sets the standard mileage rate for transportation or 

travel expenses at 67.0 cents per mile for all miles of business use (business standard 

mileage rate) effective January 1st, 2024.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, establishes the new mileage 

rate for employee reimbursement at 64.0 cents per mile to be effective July 1st, 2024. 

2.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been 

approved by a majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution 

shall remain in effect until otherwise amended or changed.   

 

 
____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 
 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-8  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #25 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden County voters of the 

Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, 

administrative control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors 

(dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job 

descriptions and creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job descriptions as needed 

to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #25, 

HIPAA Compliance. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #25 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2024-8 
 

 

 

 

 



  

Page 1 of 22 

 

 
 

POLICY: 

 

Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) shall have a policy in order to 

be compliant with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. 

 

Definitions 

 

Protective Health Information (PHI):  Individually identifiable health information that is 

transmitted or maintained in any form or medium by a covered entity, health plan, or clearing 

house as defined under the Health Insurance Portability And Accountability Act (HIPAA 45 

CFR part 160 and 164). 

 

CCDDR Privacy Officer:  CCDDR’s Executive Director and/or designee assigned by the 

Executive Director. 

 

I. Notice of Privacy Practices 

  

A. At the date of the first delivery of, appearance for service at the CCDDR facility, or 

application for services (even those services received electronically with CCDDR), the 

client or their legal guardian or parent (if a minor) should be presented with the 

Department of Mental Health (DMH) Notice of Privacy Practices.  This is considered the 

initial contact between the client and CCDDR.  The sending of an application packet is 

not considered the initial contact.  When the client is presented with the Notice of Privacy 

Practices, CCDDR will make every effort to obtain written acknowledgment of receipt 

for the Notice of Privacy Practices. 

  

1. Documentation of acknowledgment on the current Notice of Privacy Practices’ 

acknowledgement sheet that such a Notice has been presented to a client (or their 

legal guardian or parent, if a minor) for review must be signed and placed in the 

client’s record. The full Notice of Privacy Practices is then given to the client. 

2. If CCDDR does not obtain the acknowledgment, then CCDDR will document its 

good faith efforts to obtain the acknowledgment and document the reason(s) why the 

acknowledgment was not obtained on the acknowledgment cover sheet to the Notice 

of Privacy Practices. 

3. In emergency treatment situations, the Notice of Privacy Practices and a good faith 

attempt to have the client sign the Notice should be initiated at admission or prior to 

Policy Number:  

25 

Effective:  March 19, 2007 

Revised: October 16, 2017, November 12, 2020, 

January 9, 2024 

 

Subject: HIPAA Compliance  

 



  

Page 2 of 22 

 

dismissal, whichever is sooner.  If personal contact is not possible, the Notice of 

Privacy Practices can be mailed for client signature. 

 

B. A copy of the Notice of Privacy Practices is given to each client at their annual plan 

meeting. This provides clients the opportunity to discuss privacy practices with their 

Support Coordinator. 

 

C. Whenever the Notice of Privacy Practices is revised by DMH, the revised Notice must be 

made available upon request by a client. 

 

D. CCDDR’s Privacy Officer or designee will be responsible for ensuring that CCDDR 

employees are trained regarding the Notice of Privacy Practices. 

 

E. Client questions related to the Notice of Privacy Practices should be directed to the 

CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee. 

 

F. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee will maintain a historical record of all versions 

of the Notice of Privacy Practices and the applicable dates for each.  

 

 

II. Use & Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) and Authorization to Release PHI  

 

A. CCDDR Support Coordinators, staff members, and providers may share medical     

information with each other about DMH clients served in common for the purpose of 

general treatment, payment, or health care operations without the consent of the client, 

parent, or guardian. CCDDR may not use or disclose PHI without a valid authorization 

completed by the client, parent, guardian, or applicable personal representative with 

limited exceptions. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee will obtain written 

information regarding the identity of the requestor as well as the date, nature, purpose of 

the request, and the authority the requestor has to request such information. If other staff 

receive a completed authorization form for the release of PHI, they will direct it to the 

CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee for review. 

 

B. Any disclosures that occur will be limited to the minimum amount of information 

necessary to meet the purpose of the use or disclosure. Exceptions to the minimum 

necessary requirement are as follows: 

 

• When the client authorizes the disclosure 

• Disclosures required by law 

 

C. PHI may only be disclosed without authorization in the following situations:  

 

• To a public health authority (i.e. required reporting to the Missouri Department of 

Health and Senior Services) 

• To report child abuse/neglect situations, and other situations involving exploitation, 

abuse, neglect or domestic violence (if disclosure is allowed by law) 



  

Page 3 of 22 

 

• To the Food and Drug Administration 

• To a health oversight agency for activities authorized by law (i.e. audits, invitations, 

inspections, licensure) 

• To judicial or administrative proceedings (a subpoena from a court is not necessarily 

enough) 

• To law enforcement (but only in certain circumstances, including when they present a 

grand jury subpoena; information concerning forensic clients; to locate a missing 

person, suspect, or fugitive; or at the discretion of the head of the facility when the 

information is requested to assist law enforcement in their investigation [see Section 

630.140, RSMo]) 

• To avert a serious threat to health or safety  

• Governmental functions (such as national security and veterans’ information) 

• To other agencies administering public benefits 

• To medical examiners, coroners, and funeral directors 

• For organ and tissue donation 

• For authorized research purposes  

• If there is an emergency or if CCDDR is required by law to discuss certain 

information 

• To assist in communication barriers in obtaining a consent from a client 

• Appointment reminders 

• Treatment alternatives and health related benefits and services 

• Emergency or disaster events for individuals involved in disaster relief 

• Protective Services for the President and others 

• Workers Compensation 

• Public Health Risk, which includes prevention or control of disease; injury; disability; 

and/or report birth, deaths, abuse, neglect, and exploitation 

• For correctional facility inmates requiring information for treatment or legal status 

 

D. Any questions as to whether a use or disclosure is permitted or required by law should be 

directed to the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee. 

 

E. If it is CCDDR requesting the client complete the authorization, CCDDR must provide 

the client with a copy of the signed authorization. 

 

III. Accounting of PHI Disclosures 

 

A. All written and verbal communication requests on PHI need to be tracked.  However, the 

following list of exceptions to this requirement does not require tracking or need to be 

accounted for upon the request of the individual: 

 

• Disclosures made for treatment, payment, and healthcare operation purposes  

• Disclosures made to the client.  

• Disclosures made for facility directory purposes, if utilized  

• Disclosures made for national security or intelligence purposes 

• Disclosures made to correctional institutions or law enforcement officials  



  

Page 4 of 22 

 

• Disclosure made 6 years prior to the date the accounting was requested 

• There are further exceptions for disclosures to health oversight agencies (see section 

164.528(a)(2)(I) et seq.) – please contact the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee 

should this situation arise. 

 

B. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee shall assure that a plan is in place which tracks 

disclosure of both written and verbal PHI. 

 

C. CCDDR may assist clients filling out the Request for Accounting of Disclosures: 

 

D. If multiple disclosures are made to the same entity or person for the same reason, it is not 

necessary to document each disclosure. CCDDR may document the first disclosure, the 

frequency or number of disclosures made during the accounting period, and the date of 

the last disclosure in the accounting period. 

 

E. The client (or legal guardian) must make a written Request for Accounting of Disclosures 

to the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee. The request shall be on the CCDDR form. 

Staff may assist the client in completing the form if requested to do so. 

 

F. CCDDR shall have 60 days after receipt of the request for such an accounting to act on 

the Request for Accounting of Disclosure. If CCDDR has disclosed information to a 

business associate regarding the client requesting the accounting, then CCDDR, through 

its Privacy Officer or designee, must request an accounting of disclosures of the client’s 

information from that business associate, who has 20 calendar days to provide the 

accounting. CCDDR may request one 30-day extension, which is allowed, but the client 

must be informed in writing: 

 

• The reason for the delay 

• The date the accounting will be provided 

 

Such notification to the client or person requesting the accounting of disclosures of any 

delay must take place within the 60-day timeframe. 

 

G. CCDDR will provide all accounting of disclosures free of charge.  

 

H. CCDDR must retain a copy of the written accounting that is provided to the client in the 

client’s confidential file. 

 

IV. Verification of Requestor Identity & Authority 

 

A. The client or personal representative must sign a valid authorization for the disclosure of 

confidential PHI before such PHI can be released, except in accordance with existing 

HIPAA requirements. 

 

B. All requests for disclosure shall be forwarded to the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee 

including the following: 



  

Page 5 of 22 

 

 

• The name of the requesting party or parties 

• Any documentation, statements, or representations from the person requesting the 

PHI of the requestor’s authority to request such information (i.e., legal representative 

of client, law enforcement official, etc.) 

 

C. The client must present identification prior to receipt of any records regarding 

themselves. 

 

D. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee may rely on the following information to 

demonstrate identity: 

 

• Presentation of agency identification, credentials, or other proof of government status 

(a badge, identification card, etc.) 

• A written request on agency letterhead or an oral statement if a written statement 

would not be possible (a natural disaster, other emergency situations, etc.) 

• If the disclosure is requested by a person acting on behalf of a public official, a 

written statement on government letterhead that the person is acting under the 

government’s authority or a contract or purchase order evidencing the same 

• A court order 

 

E. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee shall verify identity of any phone requests from 

all individuals, including law enforcement officers and others who have an official need 

for PHI, by using a callback phone number before releasing information. 

 

F. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee shall verify facsimile numbers of any faxed 

requests. The main number of the sending agency shall be called, and the fax number 

verified. 

 

G. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee shall verify e-mail addresses by calling 

requestors. The general number for the sending agency shall be called, and then a request 

shall be made to be transferred to the specific individual who made the contact. All e-

mails containing PHI MUST be encrypted. 

 

H. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee is responsible for copying verification 

information or obtaining badge numbers, etc., and for maintaining it in the client’s health 

information file. 

 

I. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee must review the forwarded information and 

determine if the documents satisfactorily verify the identity of the requestor and also 

demonstrate the requestor has authority to request the information under state and federal 

law. 

 

J. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee may disclose information to the requestor if all 

requirements for use and disclosure are met. 

 



  

Page 6 of 22 

 

K. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee shall contact agencies or other entities for 

further verification of identity or authority to receive PHI, if necessary. 

 

L. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee may deny access to information, if verification 

of identity or authority is not accomplished. 

 

V. Disclosure of Minimum Necessary Amount of PHI 

 

A. CCDDR will make reasonable efforts to ensure that the minimum necessary PHI is 

disclosed, used, or requested. Exceptions to the minimum necessary requirement 

include: 

 

• Disclosures to the individual who is the subject of the information 

• Disclosures made pursuant to an authorization 

• Disclosures to or requests by healthcare providers for treatment purposes 

• Disclosures required for compliance with the standardized HIPAA transactions 

• Disclosures made to Health & Human Services/Office of Civil Rights (HHS/OCR) 

pursuant to a privacy investigation 

• Disclosures otherwise required by the HIPAA regulations or other law 

• Disclosures necessary for care coordination and/or case management 

 

B. Each user of PHI will be subject to the provisions of CCDDR policies relating to 

staff access to PHI. 

 

C. Reasonable efforts will be made to limit each PHI user’s access to only the PHI that is 

needed to carry out the user’s duties. These efforts will include the CCDDR Privacy 

Officer or designee monitoring staff use and disclosure of PHI. 

 

D. For situations where PHI use and disclosure or PHI requests occur on a routine and 

recurring basis, the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee will issue directives as to what 

information constitutes the minimum necessary amount of PHI needed to achieve the 

purpose of the use, disclosure, or request. 

 

E. For non-routine disclosures (other than pursuant to a legitimate or legal authorization), 

staff will address questions to the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee to assure that PHI 

is limited to what is reasonably necessary to accomplish the purpose for which disclosure 

is sought. Examples of non-routine disclosures include providing PHI to accrediting 

bodies, insurance carriers, research entities, funeral homes, etc. 

 

VI. Client/Guardian Procedural Safeguards for Improper Use or Disclosure of PHI 

 

DMH and CCDDR encourage clients and service providers to discuss and attempt to resolve 

issues at the local level. 

 

The following steps constitute the HIPAA complaint process: 

 



  

Page 7 of 22 

 

A. Fill out the  CCDDR Complaint Form  

  

B. Forward a copy of the complaint form to the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee if the 

alleged violation took place at CCDDR facility or program. 

C. All Privacy Complaints received by the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee will be 

date-stamped upon arrival: 

 

• The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee will review and act on the complaint in a 

timely manner and not more than 30 days from receipt of the complaint – if additional 

time is necessary to review and investigate the complaint, the CCDDR Privacy 

Officer or designee shall, within 30 days, notify the client of the delay, and inform the 

grievant of the expected timeframe for completion of the review 

• The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee shall determine what PHI is affected by the 

complaint and if the PHI was provided to other covered entities and business 

associates 

• If the affected PHI was created and maintained by a business associate, the complaint 

will be forwarded to the business associate as outlined in the Business Associate 

Agreement – complaints forwarded to business associates will be logged and a notice 

of the action sent to the client making the complaint 

 

D. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee will determine if there is cause to believe a 

violation of CCDDR privacy policies occurred, and the course of action to be taken. 

 

1. If no violation has occurred, the complaint and finding will be date-stamped, the 

complaint will be considered closed, and a written notice of this shall be provided to 

the client, guardian, and/or legal representative. 

2. If cause exists to believe a violation has occurred, the CCDDR Privacy Officer or 

designee shall be responsible for determining if: 

 

• Performance or training need to be improved 

• A recommendation for a change to the CCDDR policy should be forwarded to the 

Board of Directors 

• A recommendation should be made to the Board of Directors to establish a new 

Privacy Policy or change the existing CCDDR policy. 

 

3. The Privacy Officer or designee shall notify the Board of Directors of the action 

needed. 

4. If employee discipline must be administered, it must follow the CCDDR policy on 

sanctions. 

 

E. If the complaint resolution finds that no cause exists to believe a violation occurred, then 

the client or client’s legal representative may seek resolution to the CCDDR Board of 

Directors directly (if it is a CCDDR based complaint). 

 



  

Page 8 of 22 

 

1. The client or client’s legal representative, through completion of the Complaint Form, 

will request that the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee forward the complaint to 

the CCDDR Board of Directors. 

2. The Board of Directors will review and act on the complaint in a timely manner and 

not more than 30 days from receipt of the complaint form. 

 

F. The Board of Directors shall determine one of the following: 

 

• The original determination of the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee is accurate 

• Remediation should occur through increased training or a recommendation be made 

for possible disciplinary action 

• A recommendation for CCDDR policy review be initiated 

• A recommendation be made for the establishment of a new CCDDR policy 

 

G. The original complaint form shall be placed in the client’s confidential file. 

 

H. The CCDDR Privacy Officer’s or designee’s primary responsibilities in the HIPAA 

Complaint process include logging and retaining complaints in a retrievable manner for a 

minimum of six years and identifying: 

 

• Person or entity making the complaint 

• Date complaint was received 

• A list of the PHI affected 

• Status of a complaint 

• A list of business associates or facilities affected 

• Actions taken    

 

I. There shall be no retaliation against any client or against a workforce member for 

assisting a client to file a CCDDR complaint regarding CCDDR management of PHI or a 

report of breach of privacy and security of PHI.  

 

VII. Designated Records Set 

 

A. CCDDR shall identify all information systems (defined as an organized collection of 

information) that contain PHI. 

 

B. That inventory shall be maintained by the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee.  Any 

new, modified, or defunct systems will be added to or removed from the inventory by the 

Privacy Officer or designee. 

 

C. For the purpose of the implementation of this policy, the term designated record set 

includes any item, collection, or grouping of information that includes PHI and is 

maintained, collected, used, or disseminated by CCDDR for client care or payment 

decision making, including (but not limited to): 

 

• Medical and billing records about clients maintained by or for CCDDR 



  

Page 9 of 22 

 

• Enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management record 

systems maintained by or for CCDDR  

• Any records or information used, in whole or in part, by or for CCDDR to make 

decisions about clients 

 

D. Information not part of the Designated Records Set is defined as follows:  

 

1.   Any documents that are used for census information, quality assurance or quality 

improvement, peer review, sentinel event, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 

purposes, utilization review, abuse/neglect investigations, incident/injury reports, 

state auditors, or various electronic databases, etc., which are not used to make 

decisions regarding an individual client or any work therapy employment files; 

integrated risk assessment including serious incident history, index crime report, 

annual synopsis of endangering behaviors, recent predictive behaviors, request for 

passes and privileges, forensic release request, law enforcement reports, victim 

notification information; or REJIS, MULES, or NCIC report.  However, these types 

of information may be accessible by parents or guardians. In addition, for forensic 

case evaluations (defined in section 552 or 557, RSMo), the pretrial commitment 

order, the pretrial evaluation, or any correspondence relating to the pretrial is not part 

of the designated records set. Neither is the victim notification information.   

2.   For forensic cases, any forensic evaluation or any correspondence relating to the 

      forensic commitment is not part of the designated records set. 

3. For persons referred, considered for referral, or committed (pursuant to section 

                  632.525 RSMo), risk assessments, probable cause evaluations, court-ordered 

                  evaluations, and annual reports are not part of the designated records set.  

4.   Working files, either paper or electronic, are not considered part of the designated  

      records set.  Examples of this information may include, but are not limited to, copies 

of the current personal plan, IEP, guardianship information, MOCABI or Vineland, 

client budgets, correspondence (including e-mail), face or cover sheet (including 

demographic information), behavior support plan, discharge summary, any necessary 

monthly or quarterly reports, authorizations, conditional release plan, etc. 

5.   Psychotherapy notes are not included in the designated records set and are to be kept  

      separate from the medical record. 

 

E. When an individual or department have been given sanctioned, exclusive possession and 

control of PHI as part of their assigned duties, the individual or department shall be 

responsible for all administrative duties of a data trustee in terms of security, data access, 

privacy, data backup, disaster recovery, and accountability. When the individual or 

department does not have the technical expertise or equipment to adequately protect the 

PHI, the individual or department must arrange for technical assistance either through the 

Information Systems or Health Information Management Departments to assure the 

confidentiality of the PHI.  Any field staff must refer to DMH DOR 9.080. 

 

F.  The designated record set will be created, stored, released, transported, copies and 

destroyed based on DMH DOR 8.110 Record Retention and Destruction.  Failure to 

comply or assure compliance with the DOR could result in disciplinary action, up to and 



  

Page 10 of 22 

 

including dismissal.  The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee will collect information 

from the Local Privacy Officer or designee annually to monitor compliance with the 

DMH DOR.  

 

VIII. Access to Computerized/Electronic PHI 

 

A. Pursuant to the Electronic Communications Privacy Act of 1986, CCDDR management 

shall have complete access to all e-mail and internet activities. No electronic 

communications sent or received are considered private to the employee. Management 

has the right to monitor messages and internet use as necessary to assure efficient and 

appropriate use of the technology. 

 

B. Each of the electronic communications technologies may create electronic records that 

are easily saved, copied, forwarded, retrieved, monitored, reviewed, and used for 

litigation. All electronic records are the property of the CCDDR and can be accessed and 

used by management when: 

 

• A legitimate business need exists that cannot be satisfied by other means 

• The involved employee is unavailable, and timing is critical to a business activity 

• There is reasonable cause to suspect criminal activity or policy violations 

• Law, regulation, or third-party agreement requires such monitoring 

 

C. These disclosures of electronic records may be made without prior notice to the staff 

members who sent or received the communications. Staff members should not assume 

that any electronic communications are private. 

 

D. User Access to Electronic CCDDR Data: To gain access to any CCDDR protected 

healthcare information, CCDDR workforce members are required to consult with the 

CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee beforehand. All users shall be required to protect 

confidential data, and only the minimum necessary data shall be accessed. 

 

E. CCDDR shall maintain a Disaster Recovery Plan, approved by the Security Officer to 

assure continued operations in the event of an emergency. 

 

F. No CCDDR client or volunteer shall have access to another person’s PHI or any other 

CCDDR client demographic system, or be allowed to input information to local systems 

that may be used to feed or modify those systems unless authorized by the client. Any 

proposed client/client access shall include documentation of the client reviewing and 

agreeing to a confidentiality statement. Documentation will include the types of systems 

and files accessed. 

 

G. Such client access shall be approved by the CCDDR Director, or designee with 

notification and documentation provided to the Security Officer. 

 

H. Users are required to abide by the following guidelines when using CCDDR email and 

internet systems: 



  

Page 11 of 22 

 

 

1. The internet and email are intended to be used primarily for business purposes. 

2. The internet may be used to access external databases and files to obtain reference 

information or to conduct research. 

3. Email may be used to disseminate business-related newsletters, press releases, or 

other documents to groups of people. 

4. Email and the internet may be used for discussion groups on job-related topics. 

5. Do NOT use personal email. 

 

I. Email and/or the internet may not be used for: 

 

• Any illegal, private, or unethical purpose 

• Downloading software of any kind without prior approval of management 

• Participating in personal social media, internet chat rooms, instant messaging, or 

other similar medias 

• Playing games 

• Conducting any political activity 

 

J. All CCDDR employees, clients, and volunteers must receive the required HIPAA privacy 

training. 

 

K. CCDDR workforce members receiving or maintaining PHI shall be required to agree to 

the security of such PHI in accordance with the state and federal laws as set forth above. 

These workforce members shall sign a confidentiality statement.  A copy of the signed 

confidentiality statement shall be maintained in the personnel file of CCDDR staff. 

 

L. CCDDR will utilize password management: 

 

1. Passwords shall not be shared. 

2. Passwords shall be changed immediately if the user is aware that someone else knows 

it. 

3. Users shall not change their passwords while others are present. 

4. Passwords should have no connection to the user, i.e. username, children’s name, etc. 

 

IX. Physical Security/Maintenance of Electronic & Computerized PHI 

 

A. Users shall be automatically logged off their workstations after a maximum period of 15 

minutes of inactivity. 

 

B. Designated CCDDR staff shall ensure that all media has been thoroughly cleansed of any 

client data before the media is disposed. 

 

C. Access to media containing client data shall be controlled by: 

 

• Physical access control to CCDDR hardware 

• Purging CCDDR data on any type of media before it is discarded 



  

Page 12 of 22 

 

• Storage of data on media that is backed up 

 

D. The CCDDR Security Officer shall maintain an up-to-date standards list which prescribes 

appropriate procedures and practices for data security purposes. 

 

E. Virus protection for the CCDDR network shall be maintained by the IT 

manager/consultant. 

 

F. The CCDDR workforce shall not load software, from any source, on to their assigned 

workstation without prior authorization from the Executive Director. This software 

includes, but is not limited to, software from the internet, a CD, or other external device 

or media. Software must be approved by the Executive Director prior to being loaded on 

workstations.  

 

X. Client/Guardian Right to Amend PHI 

 

A. A client, parent of a minor, and personal representative or legal guardian, as relevant to 

the client’s representation, who believes information in the client’s health records is 

incomplete or incorrect may request an amendment or correction of the information as 

outlined below: 

 

1. For minor discrepancies (i.e. typos, misspelled name, wrong date, etc.), the client may 

approach the author of the entry, point out the error, and ask the author to correct it. 

 

a. If the entry author agrees, the entry can be corrected according to best 

documentation practices by drawing a single line through the error; adding a note 

explaining the error (such as “wrong date” or “typo”); date and initial it; and make 

the correction as close as possible to the original entry in the record. 

b. Any information added to a Person-Centered Plan in the regular course of 

business is not considered an amendment. An example would be when a client 

provides the name of a new private physician or other professional whom the 

client sees in the community. 

 

2. All other requests for amendment to PHI shall be in writing and provide a reason to 

support the amendment. Specifically, any request should be supported by 

documentation of any incorrect information or incomplete information. 

 

B. The “Request to Amend Protected Health Information” form shall be provided to 

facilitate the request. CCDDR may assist in initiating the process requesting amendment 

to PHI and a copy shall be provided to the client. 

 

C. All requests for amendment of PHI must be forwarded to the CCDDR Privacy Officer or 

designee, who will route the original request to the author of the PHI or the individual’s 

supervisor. If the author choses to add a comment to the request form, a second copy of 

the form will be given to the client with the author’s comments. 

 



  

Page 13 of 22 

 

D. This request shall be processed in a timely and consistent manner according to 

established timeframes but not more than 60 days after receipt of the request. 

 

E. If the request for amendment cannot be processed within the 60 days, the timeframe may 

be extended no more than an additional 30 days with notification in writing to the 

individual outlining the reasons for the delay and the date the request will be concluded. 

 

F. If a client with a guardian requests an amendment, a letter is to be sent to the guardian 

stating that the client is requesting an amendment, and further requesting that the 

guardian complete the request for amendment form. 

 

G. If the request is granted, CCDDR shall: 

 

1. Insert the amendment or provide a link to the amendment at the site of the 

information that is the subject of the request for amendment, and then document the 

change in the same section of the record as the original information. 

2. Inform the client that the amendment is accepted. 

3. Obtain the authorization of the client to notify all relevant persons or entities with 

whom the amendment needs to be shared. 

4. Within 60 days, make reasonable efforts to provide the amendment to the persons 

identified by the client, and any persons, including business associates, that CCDDR 

knows has been provided the PHI that is the subject of the amendment and who may 

have relied on or could foreseeably rely on the information to the detriment of the 

client.  

5. If the amendment affects a service for which billing or a charge has already been 

submitted, then the billing must be reviewed to see if it should be amended or 

changed as well to reflect the new information. 

 

H. CCDDR may deny the request for amendment to PHI if: 

 

1. The information was not created by CCDDR. However, if the client can provide 

reasonable proof that the person or entity that created the information is no longer 

available to make the amendment, and the request is not denied on other grounds, 

CCDDR must amend the information. 

2. The information is not part of the medical information kept by or for CCDDR. 

3. The information is not part of the information that the client would be permitted to 

inspect and copy (for specifics on client’s access to PHI, see DMH DOR 8.030). 

4. The information is accurate and complete. 

 

I. If CCDDR denies the requested amendment, it must provide the client with a timely, 

written denial, written in plain language that contains: 

 

• The basis for the denial 

• The client’s right to submit a written statement disagreeing with the denial and how 

the client may file such a statement 



  

Page 14 of 22 

 

• The name, title, address, and telephone number of the person to whom a statement of 

disagreement should be addressed 

• The steps to file a complaint with the Department of Health and Senior Services. 

• A statement that if the client does not submit a statement of disagreement, the client 

may request that CCDDR provide the request for amendment and the denial with any 

future disclosures of PHI 

• A copy must also be provided to the guardian, if applicable; to parent(s), if 

applicable; or to Department of Social Services if that agency has legal and physical 

custody of the juvenile 

 

J. Clients shall be permitted to submit to CCDDR a written statement disagreeing with the 

denial of all or part of a requested amendment and the basis for the disagreement. This 

statement of disagreement shall be limited to one page. 

 

1. The statement of disagreement will be submitted in writing to the CCDDR Executive 

Director.  

2. CCDDR may prepare a written rebuttal to the statement of disagreement and must 

provide the client with a copy of the rebuttal. 

3. CCDDR must identify the record of PHI that is the subject of the disputed 

amendment and append or link the request for an amendment, the denial of the 

request, the individual’s statement of disagreement, if any, and the CCDDR rebuttal 

statement, if any. 

 

K. If the client has submitted a statement of disagreement, CCDDR must include the 

documents or an accurate summary of the information, with any subsequent disclosure of 

the PHI to which the disagreement relates. 

 

L. If the client has not submitted a written statement of disagreement, CCDDR must include 

the client’s request for amendment and its denial or an accurate summary of the 

information with any subsequent disclosure of PHI only if the client has requested it. 

 

M. If CCDDR receives information from another source of an amendment of a client’s PHI, 

the PHI from the sending facility must be amended in written or electronic form. 

 

XI. Request to Restrict PHI 

 

A. Clients shall indicate their request for restriction on the use or disclosure of their PHI 

using the “Request for Restrictions on the Use and/or Disclosure of Protected Health 

Information” form. 

 

B. The requested restrictions must be provided in writing as well as signed and dated by the 

client or legal representative. 

 

C. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee must receive the written request. The Privacy 

Officer or designee, in consultation with the Executive Director or DMH Privacy Officer 

or designee, will determine whether it will be approved using the following procedure: 



  

Page 15 of 22 

 

 

1. If approved, CCDDR must implement the restriction. 

2. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee will identify the restriction on the face sheet 

of the client’s confidential file. 

3. CCDDR’s agreement or refusal of the request shall be documented on the request 

form as well as signed and dated by the Privacy Officer or designee. 

4. The original will be filed for permanent retention. 

5. A copy of the approved or denied form will be provided to the client. 

 

D. CCDDR may terminate the agreement to a restriction if: 

 

1. The client agrees to or requests the termination in writing. 

2. The client orally agrees to the termination and the oral agreement is documented. 

3. CCDDR informs the client that it is terminating its agreement to a restriction and that 

such termination is only effective with respect to PHI created or received after it has 

so informed the individual. 

4. When any of the above criteria are met, the restriction will be removed, and the form 

will be dated and signed by the Privacy Officer or designee. 

5. If the restriction was identified on the face sheet of the client’s confidential file, that 

identification shall be removed by the Privacy Officer or designee. 

 

E. If CCDDR has agreed to the restriction, but the client who requested the restriction is in 

need of emergency treatment and the restricted PHI is needed to provide the emergency 

treatment, CCDDR may disclose that PHI to a health care provider to provide such 

treatment. 

 

F. If such PHI is disclosed in an emergency situation, CCDDR must require that the health 

care provider to whom the information was disclosed not further use or disclose that PHI. 

Failure of staff to comply or assure compliance may result in disciplinary action, 

including dismissal. 

 

XII. Client Right to Access or Receive a Copy of PHI  

 

A. A client who has or is receiving services from CCDDR, parent of a minor, and legal 

representative or legal guardian as relevant to their representation, must request in writing 

for access to inspect or receive copies of PHI, except in those instances covered by 

federal regulation and outlined in the Notice of Privacy Practices acknowledged at 

admission, and must further specify the exact information requested for access. 

 

B. The “Request to Access or Receive a Copy of Protected Health” form shall be provided 

to facilitate the request. CCDDR personnel may assist in initiating the process requesting 

access to PHI. 

 

C. All requests by clients and their legal representatives for PHI must be forwarded to the 

Privacy Officer or designee for action. 

 



  

Page 16 of 22 

 

D. If it is acceptable after discussion with the client, CCDDR may provide a summary of the 

PHI to the client. If the summary is acceptable, CCDDR shall determine the appropriate 

staff to provide that explanation to the client. The client’s agreement to a summary shall 

be documented in writing in the record as a check in the appropriate box in the “Request 

To Access or Receive a Copy of PHI” form. The form shall be filed in the client’s 

confidential file. 

 

E. This request shall be processed in the format requested (i.e. microfiche, computer disk, 

etc.), if possible, and in a timely consistent manner according to established timeframes 

but not more than 15 days after receipt of the request. If the record cannot be accessed 

within the 15 days, the timeframe may be extended for no more than an additional 15 

days with notification in writing to the individual outlining reasons for the delay and the 

date the request will be concluded. 

 

F. Requests for Access to PHI may be denied without a right to review as follows: 

 

• If the information conforms to one of the following categories: psychotherapy notes; 

information compiled for use in a civil, criminal or administrative action or 

proceeding; or information that would be prohibited from use or disclosure under the 

Certified Laboratory Information Act (CLIA) laws and regulations 

• If the client is participating in research related treatment and has agreed to the denial 

of access to records for the duration of the study 

• If access is otherwise precluded by law 

• If the information was obtained from someone other than a health care provider under 

a promise of confidentiality and the access requested would be reasonably likely to 

reveal the source of the information – all Victim Notification and Duty To Warn 

forms, as well as any other documentation that contains demographics of victims or 

potential victims shall be removed before any review of the record by anyone not 

employed by CCDDR, and if the CCDDR employee is a client worker, then the 

information shall be removed before any review of the record 

• If CCDDR has been provided a copy of a court order from a court of competent 

jurisdiction which limits the release or use of PHI 

 

G. Requests for Access to PHI may be denied provided the individual is given a right to 

have the denial reviewed as follows: 

 

1. A licensed health care professional based on an assessment of the particular 

circumstances, determines that the access requested is reasonably likely to endanger 

the life or physical safety of the client or another person. 

2. CCDDR may deny the client access to PHI if the information requested makes 

reference to someone other than the client and a licensed health care professional has 

determined that the access requested is reasonably likely to cause serious harm to that 

other person. 

3. CCDDR may deny a request to receive a copy or inspect PHI by a personal 

representative of the client if CCDDR has a reasonable belief that the client has been 

or may be subjected to domestic violence, abuse, or neglect by such person; treating 



  

Page 17 of 22 

 

such person as the personal representative could endanger the individual; and 

CCDDR, exercising professional judgment, decides that it is not in the best interest of 

the client to treat that person as the client’s personal representative. 

 

H. Upon denial of any request for access to PHI, in whole or in part, a written letter shall be 

sent to the client, or other valid representative making the request for access, stating in 

plain language the basis for the denial. 

 

1. If the client has a right to a review of the denial, the letter shall contain a statement of 

how to make an appeal of the denial including the name, title, address, and telephone 

number of the person to whom an appeal should be addressed. 

2. This letter shall also address the steps to file a complaint with the Secretary of HHS. 

3. If the information requested is not maintained by CCDDR, but it is known where the 

client may obtain access, CCDDR must inform the client where to direct the request 

for access.  

 

I. A client, parent of a minor, or guardian of a client has the right to appeal the decision to 

withhold portions or all of the record for safety or confidentiality reasons as follows: 

 

1. The appeal shall be submitted in writing to the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee, 

who will designate a licensed health care professional. 

2. The designated licensed health care professional who did not participate in the 

original decision to deny access shall review the record and the request for access to 

the client’s record.  

 

a. The reviewer must determine if access meets an exception. 

b. If the reviewer determines that the initial denial was appropriate, the client must 

be notified in writing, using plain language that the review resulted in another 

denial of access. The notice must include the reasons for denial and must describe 

the process to make a complaint to the Secretary of HHS. 

c. If the denial was not appropriate, the licensed health care professional who acts as 

the reviewer shall refer the request to the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee for 

action.  

 

3. If access is denied to any portion of the PHI, access must still be granted to those 

portions of the PHI that are not restricted. 

4. CCDDR is bound by the decision of the reviewer. 

 

J. If CCDDR provides a client or legal representative with access, in whole or in part, to 

PHI, CCDDR must comply with the specifications as outlined in federal regulations to 

the extent of CCDDR’s capabilities and as identified in the Notice of Privacy Practices. 

 

1. Requested information must be provided in designated record sets. 

2. If the requested information is maintained in more than one designated record set or 

in more than one location, CCDDR only needs to produce the information one time in 

response to the request. 



  

Page 18 of 22 

 

3. CCDDR may provide a summary or explanation of the requested PHI if: 

 

• The client agrees in advance to the summary or explanation in place of the record 

• The client agrees in advance to any fees imposed for the summary or explanation 

 

4. If the requested information is maintained electronically and the client requests an 

electronic or faxed copy, CCDDR must accommodate the request if possible and 

should explain the risk to security of the information when transmitted as requested. 

5. If the information is downloaded to a computer disk, the client should be advised in 

advance of any charges for the disk and for mailing the disk. CCDDR shall establish a 

reasonable cost for the duplication of this information on a disk. 

6. If the information is not available in the format requested, CCDDR must produce a 

hard copy document or other format agreed upon by the client and CCDDR. 

7. Clients can now request a provider to submit an access request for PHI to another  

healthcare provider within Electronic Health Records, as long as: 

a. The requests are limited to direct electronic copies of PHI to a third party 

b. Request should be "clear, conspicuous and specific” 

 

K. CCDDR shall provide the access requested in a timely manner and arrange for a mutually 

convenient time and place for the client to inspect the PHI or obtain copies, unless access 

by another method has been requested by the client and agreed to by the CCDDR. Any 

requests for accommodations shall be sent or given in writing to the Privacy Officer or 

designee. 

 

L. The fee charged will be in compliance with the current Missouri statute (See Section 

191.227, RSMO) and federal law. 

 

M. CCDDR will post an estimated fee schedule on the CCDDR website and provide 

itemized bills for completed requests.  PHI must be provided free of charge during in 

person viewing. 

 

N. Clients and/or their guardians may take notes and take pictures of their PHI.  CCDDR 

will not allow any personal devices to be connected to CCDDR information systems. 

 

O. The PHI of a deceased client may only be released via a Probate Court order from the 

County Circuit Court where the deceased resided or from another Probate Court in the 

state of Missouri. 

 

P. Upon request to obtain information, the Privacy Officer or designee shall ask for a copy 

of the Probate Court Order. 

 

XIII. Workforce Compliance 

 

A. CCDDR workforce members shall be granted access to PHI, whether written, electronic, 

or verbal in nature, in accordance with state and federal law (HIPAA, P.L. 104-191; 42 

CFR Part 2 et seq.) and other relevant CCDDR policies. Such access shall be limited to 



  

Page 19 of 22 

 

the minimum necessary amount of PHI to accomplish the purpose of any requested use or 

disclosure of PHI (e.g. to the amount of PHI the employee or workforce member needs to 

know in order to accomplish their job or task). In addition, communications between 

workforce members which involve PHI shall also be considered confidential and should 

not take place in public areas. If it is absolutely necessary to conduct such conversations 

in public areas, reasonable steps shall be taken to assure the confidentiality of the PHI. 

 

B. Client PHI can be taken outside the office building with specific authorization from the 

Privacy Officer or designee upon receipt of a court order which subpoenas the records or 

if a record is being transported to the DMH Regional Office due to discharge or transfer 

of a client. 

 

C. If PHI in any form is lost or stolen, the Privacy Officer or designee should be notified as 

soon as practical, but no later than two (2) business days after the loss is discovered, in 

order for the Privacy Officer or designee to initiate the mitigation process. 

 

D. The CCDDR workforce members shall be informed of their obligations with respect to 

PHI in accordance with CCDDR by mandatory participation in HIPAA Privacy Training. 

 

E. The CCDDR workforce members that receive or maintain PHI shall be required to agree 

to the protection of such PHI in accordance with the state and federal laws as set forth 

above. These workforce members shall sign a HIPAA Confidentiality Statement.  A copy 

of the signed confidentiality statement shall be maintained in the personnel file of 

CCDDR staff or volunteers. 

 

F. Visitors to CCDDR are not required to sign the confidentiality agreement. However, a 

copy of the confidentiality agreement shall be located next to the visitor sign-in materials 

and available for review by each visitor. 

 

XIV.    Mandatory Training 

 

A. All employees of CCDDR are given a packet regarding HIPAA rules at new hire 

orientation.  After HIPAA information has been reviewed by CCDDR employees, a test 

is given on the information covered in packet and results of the tests are discussed with 

the individual.  Additional HIPAA training is covered in mandatory courses required by 

DMH.  

 

1. Trainings shall be conducted at the CCDDR facility or designated location. 

2. Additional mandatory privacy training shall be scheduled whenever there is a 

material change in DMH privacy policies or procedures as determined by the DMH’s 

Privacy Officer or designee. 

3. Periodic mandatory security training shall be scheduled as determined by the DMH’s 

Security Officer. 

 

B. CCDDR employees shall receive training as part of their initial employee orientation. 

The content for the HIPAA new employee orientation shall be the same as listed in 



  

Page 20 of 22 

 

paragraph A. However, any interactive exercises, or supplemental videos, will not be 

required content for new employee orientation. HIPAA new employee orientation must 

take place within 30 days of the date of hire. 

 

C. Volunteers, students, and contract employees for CCDDR on a regular course of business 

shall also be required to receive training as a part of their initial CCDDR orientation (also 

known as the new employee orientation course). The content for the HIPAA initial 

CCDDR orientation shall be the same as listed in paragraph A to this policy excluding 

mandatory courses required by DMH. However, any interactive exercises, or 

supplemental videos, will not be required content for initial CCDDR orientation. Such 

training must be done within 30 days of the initial date that the person presents for 

service. 

 

D. The CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee shall identify groups or individuals who, due to 

the nature of their job function within CCDDR, will require in-depth training related to 

HIPAA and CCDDR’s policies, and then provide that specialized training. 

 

E. Documentation of Mandatory HIPAA Training shall be recorded by the CCDDR Privacy 

Officer or designee. 

 

XV.    Field Practices 

 

A. PHI that is unattended shall be secured in a manner to protect such information from 

persons without authorized access to this PHI.  

 

B. Vehicles containing any PHI shall be kept locked while unoccupied. PHI shall be kept 

locked in the trunk of the vehicle, when possible. In the event of extreme temperature 

situations, an electronic device (laptop, digital device/assistant, etc.) containing PHI shall 

be maintained in the temperature-controlled cab in a case while the vehicle is occupied. 

 

C. In the event of a vehicle accident, any CCDDR employee who suspects there is PHI in 

the vehicle shall make every reasonable attempt to make sure that the PHI is not 

accessible to anyone who does not need to have access to it, after assuring the health and 

safety of any individual(s). 

 

D. Upon an employee leaving an area where they have materials containing PHI (e.g. to use 

the restroom), the employee shall take the materials with them or ensure that the area is 

protected from viewing by those without authorization by locking the area, informing 

CCDDR personnel if they are CCDDR records, and/or using some other reasonable 

intervention. 

 

E. Electronic devices containing PHI and other forms of PHI shall not be left in a hotel room 

for the day when cleaning services are expected. Upon leaving the hotel, employees shall 

take these items with them, ensure they are locked in the valuables area at the front desk, 

or locked in a safe in the room, if one is available. Should this not be possible, each 



  

Page 21 of 22 

 

document that is contained on the laptop shall be password protected on an individual 

basis. 

 

F. Employees shall travel in the field taking only PHI necessary to carry out their duties. 

 

G. Any documentation or equipment, such as laptops, briefcases, etc., that may contain PHI 

shall be secured from access by those without authorization to the PHI. This includes all 

locations including an employee’s home. Again, each document that is contained on the 

laptop shall be password protected on an individual basis. 

 

H. Data contained on all laptops, etc., should be backed-up to a encrypted storage device or 

to the network when at all possible to avoid loss of valuable PHI. 

 

I. If PHI in any form is lost or stolen, the CCDDR Privacy Officer or designee should be 

notified as soon as practical, not to exceed two (2) business days, in order to initiate the 

mitigation process. 

 

J. PHI that is potentially within view of others, even if CCDDR staff is present, shall be 

protected in a manner that such information is not communicated to persons without 

authorized access to this PHI: 

 

1. All PHI within a vehicle shall be maintained so as to protect from plain view through 

the windows of the vehicle. 

2. Any electronic device containing PHI shall not have the screen placed in view of 

others and, if left unattended briefly, a screen saver with password shall be employed 

consistent with CCDDR’s security requirements. 

3. All documentation containing PHI shall be maintained out of the view of 

unauthorized persons. 

4. While working with PHI, the employee shall keep the documentation within line of 

sight or within arm’s reach. 

5. This documentation shall be viewed in the most private settings available. 

6. Only PHI documentation necessary for the task at hand shall be in view. 

7. Briefcases containing PHI shall remain closed when not in use. 

8. When having PHI material copied, the employee shall ensure that this material is only 

viewed by authorized persons. 

9. When the employee is finished with reviewing CCDDR records containing PHI, the 

records shall be returned promptly to their appropriate storage area. 

 

K. Employees shall send and receive faxed materials containing PHI to and from CCDDR 

facilities only, unless such facility is not readily available and timely transmission of 

records is necessary for safety needs. If in non-CCDDR locations: 

 

1. When sending or receiving a fax containing PHI, the employee shall ensure only 

those authorized to view have access to the material during the process of 

transmission. 

2. The fax cover sheet shall not contain PHI. 



  

Page 22 of 22 

 

3. The employee shall be waiting to receive the fax at the fax machine when the 

transmission is expected if the material could be accessed by those without 

authorization to view the PHI. Call the receiving location to verify transmission was 

successful. 

 

L. Any CCDDR identifying information shall not be in plain view such as agency logo on a 

notebook, briefcase, etc. 

 

M. When using sign language interpreters where PHI may be transmitted, the most private 

setting available out of view of others shall be used. 

 

N. PHI that is verbally transmitted to others shall be protected in a manner that such 

information is not communicated to persons without authorized access to this PHI. 

 

O. Conversations where PHI is discussed shall occur in the most private settings. There shall 

be as much distance as possible between any individuals without authorized access to the 

PHI. 

 

1. Conversations where PHI is discussed shall occur with the employee using a volume 

level which cannot be overheard by those without authorized access to the PHI, which 

includes telephone conversations. If there is no way to prevent being overheard, a 

specific code shall be used to identify an individual, such as chart number or client 

initials. 

2. The employee shall make every effort to keep the volume level of all participants’ 

low enough so as to not be overheard. 

3. Conversations shall involve using only the first name of an individual whenever 

possible. 

 

P. Wireless/cellular and cordless telephones shall be used for communicating PHI only if 

necessary. 

 

1. Conversations where PHI is discussed must be held at a volume level that cannot be 

overheard and away from individuals without authorized access to the PHI. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

• Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Of 1996/Public Law 104-191, 

Department of Mental Health DORs. 

• 45 CFR 160, 162, 164 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-9  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #34 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, and job descriptions and creates new Bylaws, 

policies, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain 

compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #34, 

Quarterly-Monthly Review. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #34 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2024-9 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2  

Policy Number: 

34 

Effective: January 1, 2013 

Revised:  September 18, 2017;  

                                                                                                  December 10, 2020; January 9, 2024 
 

    Subject: Quarterly/Monthly Reviews 
 
 
 

PURPOSE: 
 
Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) shall have a policy to 

perform a Quarterly or Monthly Review of the Individual Support Plan for each person 

who receives Support Coordination services from CCDDR. 

 

DEFINITIONS: 
 
DDD Service Monitoring Guidelines:  The Division of Developmental 

Disabilities (DDD) Support Coordinator Manual describes requirements of 

Support Monitoring, as well as information regarding maintaining and updating 

Individual Support Plans. 
 
Individual Support Plan:  This is a document resulting from a process directed by the 

individual served, with assistance as needed by a representative.  It is intended to identify 

strengths, capacities, preferences, needs, and desired outcomes of the participant. If 

possible, the individual served should be present for the person-centered planning meeting. 

The process may include other individuals freely chosen by the participant who are able to 

serve as contributors to the process.  The person-centered planning process enables and 

assists the individual to access a personalized mix of paid and non- paid services and/or 

supports that will assist him/her to achieve personally defined outcomes. 

 
Quarterly Review:  This is a review of the effectiveness of the services outlined in the 

Individual Support Plan that occurs every three months.  The quarters are established from 

the implementation date of the Individual Support Plan 

 

Monthly Review:  This is a review of the effectiveness of the services outlined in the 

Individual Support Plan that occurs every calendar month 

 

POLICY: 

 

Services authorized in all Individual Support Plans that are funded through the Department 

of Mental Health, including all Medicaid Waiver plans, shall comply with Division of 

Developmental Disabilities’ Service Monitoring guidelines.  Service provision, 

programming, and progress shall be documented.  This information may result in the 

modification of the Individual Support Plan.  Such plans shall be modified and updated, 

depending on the client’s needs and preferences. 
 

 

 



Page 2 of 2  

I. Plan Monitoring/Reviews 

 
Quarterly or Monthly Reviews shall be completed for all clients. The review period 

requirements shall be identified by the Division of Developmental Disabilities, which is 

also based on the type of services authorized for each individual client.  The Quarterly 

and Monthly Reviews shall provide an overview of progress made toward plan Personal 

Outcomes and Goals, recommendations for changes to plan, Support Coordinator 

contacts, Service Monitoring notes, and other pertinent information relating to the client. 

 
The Support Coordinator and provider agency QDDP (if applicable) shall regularly 

monitor implementation of the Individual Support Plan and progress in meeting plan 

Personal Outcomes and Goals. Changes shall be made if necessary to plan outcomes and 

action steps based upon input from team members. 

 
II. Quality Assurance 

 
The Quality Assurance Coordinator(s), Targeted Case Management Supervisor(s), and/or 

other designated CCDDR staff will monitor Quarterly Reviews, Monthly Reviews, and 

Individual Support Plans to ensure that the mandatory components of the Individual 

Support Plan Guidelines are implemented. 
 

 

REFERENCES: 
 

 

• CARF Standards Manual 

• Individual Support Plan Guidelines – Medicaid Waiver Manual 

• RSMo 633.110 

• Division of DD Quality Outcomes Discussion Guide 

• 9 CSR 45-3.010 

• RSMo 630.655 

• Division of DD Directive 3.020 

• Division Directive 4.060 


	Cover Page to Open Session
	Cover Page to Agenda
	Tentative Agenda for Open Session
	Cover Page to Open Session Minutes
	12-12-2023 Open Session Minutes
	Cover Page to OSL Nov Reports
	OSL Monthly Report
	ProfitandLoss (1)
	ProfitandLoss (2)
	BalanceSheetSummary (2)
	StatementofCashFlows (1)
	StatementofCashFlows (2)

	Cover Page to IWYP Oct Reports
	IWYP Monthly Report
	Cover Page to CLC Nov Reports
	CLC Monthly Report
	Cover Page to LAI Nov Reports
	LAI November 2023 External Reports
	Cover Page to Support Coordination Report
	Support Coordination Report
	Cover Page to Agency Economic Report
	Agency Economic Report
	Cover Page to CC Statement
	November Bankcard Statement-Redacted
	Cover Page to Resolutions
	Resolution 2024-1
	Resolution 2024-2
	Resolution 2024-3
	Resolution 2024-4
	Resolution 2024-5
	Resolution 2024-6
	Resolution 2024-7
	Resolution 2024-8
	Resolution 2024-8 Attachment A
	Resolution 2024-9
	Resolution 2024-9 Attachment A

